
 

Stirling Park, Yarralumla ɀ former Westlake & Gura Bung Dhaura Hills  

(Ngunawal - stony ground)  

These timbered hills were part of the Ngunawal pathway from Black Mountain, via The Gap 

Capital Hill, Red Hill, Mugga to Tuggeranong.  They rose above the almost treeless Canberra 

(Kemberry & other spellings) Plains.   

The area was chosen by the authorities in the 1920s to house construction workers building the 

Provisional Parliament House, Administrative Buildings, Hotel Canberra and the main intercepting 

sewer in the area.  In 1925 the population of Westlake was around 700 ς a little less than one fifth 

of the population of the FCT.  They lived in 52 small timber cottages in The Gap (later another ten 

ŀŘŘŜŘύΤ /ƻƴǘǊŀŎǘƻǊ WƻƘƴ IƻǿƛŜΩǎ {ŜǘǘƭŜƳŜƴǘ ƻf 25 timber cottages & hostel camp (18 timber huts) 

for his single men; No 3 Sewer Camp in The GapΤ ¢ǊŀŘŜǎƳŜƴΩǎ /ŀƳǇ ŀƴŘ bƻ м [ŀōƻǳǊŜǊǎ /ŀƳǇΦ  

Capitol Hill was part of Westlake and this latter camp was on Capitol Hill. Hillside Hostel was built 

on this site in the post WW2 years.  Capitol Hill Camp (1925-c1952) was constructed on the Forrest 

side of Capitol Hill and nearby in the Post WW2 period Capital Hill Hostel was built nearby. 

ORANGE ARROW ς Stirling Ridge ς numerous scarred trees, stone arrangements along with the 

endangered wildflower, Button Wrinklewort and trees numerous gums that range in years from 

about 50 or 60 to around 500.  A major fault line also runs through this section and mining 

(probably for gold) took place around the 1860s.  One of the three remaining 1925 heritage listed 

sewer vents is also on this ridge.  In a line across the ridge on the Westlake Cottage side there 

were a number of humpies erected probably for the married sewer workers. 



WHITE ARROW ς Area of No 3 Sewer Camp (1922-1925) and the last ten Westlake cottages 

erected in The Gap following the removal of the camp.   

BLACK ARROW ς General area of the Westlake Cottages in The Gap (1924-1965). In The Gap in the 

area of the proposed undeveloped road is the one remaining septic tank of the type used during 

the construction period in the temporary and permanent suburbs prior to the construction of the 

main intercepting sewer. 

RED ARROW ς DŜƴŜǊŀƭ ŀǊŜŀ ƻŦ IƻǿƛŜΩǎ Cottages (1922-1930/31) and Hostel Camp (1922-1927).  

The cottages were arranged either side of an old road that is probably the one used by the men 

ŎŀǊǘƛƴƎ ǎǘƻƴŜ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ vǳŀǊǊȅ όƴƻǿ !ǘǘǳƴƎŀ tƻƛƴǘύ ǘƻ {ǘ WƻƘƴΩǎ /ƘǳǊŎƘ όƳƛŘ муслǎύ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ 

construction of the tower.  It is mentioned by Moriaty as being in situ in 1890.  The cottage sites 

are still clearly discernable along with hedges etc. There are numerous dumps in this area along 

with some scarred trees and numerous stone arrangements. 

LIGHT BLUE ARROW ς DŜƴŜǊŀƭ ŀǊŜŀ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ¢ǊŀŘŜǎƳŜƴΩǎ /ŀƳǇ όмфнп-1927) which was separated 

ŦǊƻƳ IƻǿƛŜΩǎ ōȅ ǘƘŜ vǳŀƎƳƛǊŜΦ  bŜȄǘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ vǳŀƎƳƛǊŜ ŀǊŜŀ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ ƭŀƴŘ ǿƘŜǊŜ ǘƘŜ !ōƭǳǘƛƻƴ .ƭƻŎƪǎ ς 

laundries etc were erected.  This site has been partly documented.  Archival documents refer to 

the site in some detail.  Also on the hill are other areas with evidence of the camp that should be 

examined prior to proposed development. 

WHITE ARROW ς Area of the May 1927 Camp that housed the service men attending the 

ceremonies of the opening of Parliament by the Duke of York. 

BLUE ARROW ς General site of No 1 Labourers Camp (1923-1927) and later Hillside Hostel. 

LIGHT PURPLE ARROW ς General area of Capitol Hill Camp (1925-c1952) and later Capital Hill 

Hostel. 

THREE GREY ARROWS IN THE LAKE ς L-R Attunga Point (old quarry), site of Briar Farm & Lotus Bay. 

 

 



 

The Gap and eastern side of Stirling Park.  The blue arrow bottom left points to 29 Westlake and 

the area where one of the Westlake Plaques and photograph board has been erected.  The light 

blue arrow points to the general area of the second Westlake plaque.  The black arrow to the right 

marks the quagmire area. 

BLACK LINES IN THE GAP in the park and the embassy areas mark the general area of the Westlake 

cottages. 

RED LINE ς marks the general area of No 3 Sewer Camp. 

YELLOW LINES ς ƳŀǊƪ ǘƘŜ ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭ ŀǊŜŀ ƻŦ IƻǿƛŜΩǎ /ƻǘǘŀƎŜǎ 

²IL¢9 {I!t9 .9[h² Ih²L9Ω{ /h¢¢!D9{ ς General area of Hostel Camp where the Burns Club 

was founded in 1924 

GREEN LINE ς marks the general area of tƘŜ !ōƭǳǘƛƻƴ .ƭƻŎƪǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ¢ǊŀŘŜǎƳŜƴΩǎ /ŀƳǇ 

²IL¢9 {I!t9{ ¢h wLDI¢ hC ¢w!59{a9bΩ{ /!at ς marks general areas where signs of tents etc 

are found and numerous stone arrangements. 

DARK BLUE LINE FAR RIGHT ς This area is being developed and has numerous stone arrangements 

not fully examined. 

ORANGE ARROW FAR RIGHT ςgeneral area of the May1927 camp 



 

WESTERN SIDE OF STIRLING PARK ς STIRLING RIDGE & THE GAP 

The dotted line on the ridge marks the general area of the top of the ridge.  In this area are 

numerous scarred trees & stone arrangements along with remains of sewer working (concrete 

slabs & trench, coppiced trees and general rubbish). The Deakin Fault also passes through the 

ridge and numerous button wrinklewort flowers grow on the ridge and in other parts of the park. 

The chrome yellow line (right) marks the general area of a road that led to the heritage listed 

sewer vent (black arrow points to probable site of the vent).  The Yellow line that crosses the 

dotted line marks the general area of the ŦŜƴŎŜ ŦƻǊ /ƻǊƪƘƛƭƭΩǎ ƴƛƎƘǘ ǇŀŘŘƻŎƪ ŦƻǊ ŎƻǿǎΦ  ¢ƘŜ ǇŀŘŘƻŎƪ 

was on the left of the line and would have been in use from around the 1920s until the farm was 

resumed around the early 1960s. 

RED LINE marks the general area of No 3 Sewer Camp (1922-1925) and the area where the last ten 

Westlake Cottages were constructed in 1926.  The small black arrow above this line marks the area 

of the Westlake Hall, which was initially the Mess Rooms of No 3 Sewer Camp. 

LIGHT BLUE ARROW ς Ǉƻƛƴǘǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǊŜƳŀƛƴƛƴƎ ǎŜǇǘƛŎ ǘŀƴƪ ƴŜŀǊ IŀƛƴŜǎΩ /ǊŜŜƪ ŀƴŘ 

BLACK ARROWS ς ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǊƛƎƘǘ ƳŀǊƪ ǘƘŜ ŀǊŜŀ ƻŦ IƻǿƛŜΩǎ /ƻǘǘŀƎŜǎ όмфнн-1930/31) and Hostel Camp 

(1922-мфнтύΦ  /ƻƴǘǊŀŎǘƻǊ IƻǿƛŜΩǎ ƳŜƴ ōǳƛƭǘ ǘhe Hotel Canberra and other buildings in Canberra. 

GREEN ARROW ς points to the Southern Cross Yacht Club which is built on the site of BRIAR FARM 

(the farmhouse was constructed in the 1860s and was demolished in the early 1950s). 

THIN WHITE ARROW ς points to Attunga Point ς the old quarry. 

THICK WHITE ARROW ς points to Lotus Bay 



WESTLAKE 1920s-1965 

The name was probably given by Walter Burley Griffin and is land south of the Molonglo River in the area of the 

proposed West Lake.  It stretched from the western half of Capitol Hill over to and included the Brickworks area and 

back from the Molonglo River south to Red Hill.  In 1917 Walter Burley Griffin named the area of the Brickyards & 

Nursery ς West Ridge to ensure that it would not be confused with Yarralumla, the property.  From this time the 

Westlake western border began at Stirling Ridge. 

 

In the 1920s the Gura Bung Dhaura hills (part of Westlake) became the home of men working on the construction of 

IƻǘŜƭ /ŀƴōŜǊǊŀ όIƻǿƛŜΩǎύΤ tǊƻǾƛǎƛƻƴŀƭ tŀǊƭƛŀƳŜƴǘ IƻǳǎŜ, Administrative buildings (East & West Blocks), Provisional 

Parliament House and infrastructure that included the main intercepting sewer and roads etc.  The Westlake men lived 

in  

 ϝIƻǿƛŜΩǎ /ƻǘǘŀƎŜǎ ς 25 timber 2 and 3 bedrooms ς and recreational hall 1922-1930/31 

 ϝIƻǿƛŜΩǎ IƻǎǘŜƭ /ŀƳǇ ς 18 timber huts 1922-1927 

 *Westlake temporary portable timber cottages in The Gap (52 built 1924 & 1926) - cottages were based on 

IƻǿƛŜΩǎ ŎƻǘǘŀƎŜǎ ϧ designed by HM Rolland.  They were two bedroom cottages constructed from second grade origan 

and unlined.  They were connected to three septic tanks until the main intercepting sewer became available in 1927 

when they were connected to the sewer system.  ²ŜǎǘƭŀƪŜ ŀƭǎƻ ƘŀŘ ŀ ǊŜŎǊŜŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ƘŀƭƭΣ ǘŜƴƴƛǎ ŎƻǳǊǘ ŀƴŘ ŎƘƛƭŘǊŜƴΩǎ 

playground. 

 * No 3 Sewer Camp in The Gap1922-1925.  The old mess was converted into the Westlake Hall following the 

departure of this camp that consisted of around 50 tents (2 men to each tent). Timber ablution blocks were also 

provided. 

 ϝ hƭŘ ¢ǊŀŘŜǎƳŜƴΩǎ /ŀƳǇ мфнп-1927.  It held between 100 and 150 men and the tents (each shared by two 

men) had wooden floors and sides.  It also had mess rooms and ablution blocks constructed of timber. 

 * No 1 Labourers Camp (on Capitol Hill, Westlake) that had a population between 100 and 150 plus the usual 

mess building and ablution blocks.  One of the dumps used by this camp is on Capital Hill under a walking path that leads 

ŦǊƻƳ {ŎǊƛǾŜƴŜǊΩǎ tƭŀƴ wƻƻƳΦ 

 

Another Westlake Camp was on the area of Latrobe Park and nearby buildings.  This was the area of the Westlake Horse 

Camp and the Red Hill Monolyte Company (private firm constructing concrete buildings). 

 



PHOTOGRAPHS 

 

WESTLAKE PLAQUE ς one of two unveiled 15 March 1998.  This plaque is opposite the Mexican 

9Ƴōŀǎǎȅ ƴŜŀǊ ǘ ƘŜ ŎƻǊƴŜǊ ƻŦ 9ƳǇƛǊŜ /ƛǊŎǳƛǘ ŀƴŘ CƻǊǎǘŜǊ /ǊŜǎŎŜƴǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǎƛǘŜ ƻŦ DŜƻǊƎŜ {ȅƪŜǎΩ ƘƻƳŜ 

ς 29 Westlake. 



 

Westlake information provided by the Westlake Committee. The names are those of the people 

contemporary with the time when the Committee lived at Westlake. A fuller list is available on 

web site ς Hidden Canberra http://hiddencanberra.webs.com/  

http://hiddencanberra.webs.com/


 

Above ς the plaque, information signs and the tree planted on 15 March 1998 by the then oldest 

Westlake men. hǘƘŜǊ ǎƛƎƴǎ ǘƘŀǘ ƳŀǊƪ ǎƛǘŜǎ ǎǳŎƘ ŀǎ wƻƴƴƛŜ hΩwƻǳǊƪŜΩǎ ǘǊŜŜΣ ōŀǘƘǊƻƻƳκƭŀǳƴŘǊȅ 

concrete slab of 55 Westlake, Hall & Mess of No 3 Sewer Camp are found throughout this section 

of the park. 


